w

RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
12 1680 REFUGIO VALLEY ROAD, HERCULES, CALIFORNIA 94547
3 (510) 799-4561 FAX: (510) 799-0395

FIRE DISTRICT,

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES
May 11, 2022

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL (00:01:07)

Directors Present: Chair Covington, Vice Chair Hill, Davidson, Bowman, Mikel
Directors Absent: None.

Meeting called to order at 7:00 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE (00:00:48)

ANNOUNCEMENTS (00:01:35)
None.
CONFIRMATION OF THE AGENDA (00:5:30)

Chair Covington requesting to add an action item to the Agenda-add a motion to approve $625.00
for a %2 page ad in Marketplace for notice to community regarding strategic plan.

Vice Chair Hill made a motion to add the item to the Agenda; seconded by Director Bowman.

ROLL CALL VOTE: 5-0

Hill: Yes
Davidson: Yes
Bowman: Yes
Mikel: Yes

Covington:  Yes
Will be added to Agenda following Item 9.
Director Bowman made a motion to approve Agenda; seconded by Director Davidson.

ROLL CALL VOTE: 5-0

Hill: Yes
Davidson: Yes
Bowman: Yes
Mikel: Yes

Covington:  Yes



5. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE (00:9:35)
None.
6. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS (00:9:57)
None.
7. CONSENT CALENDAR (00:10:34)
Motion by Vice Chair Hill to approve consent calendar; seconded by Director Bowman.

ROLL CALL VOTE: 5-0

Hill: Yes
Davidson: Yes
Bowman: Yes
Mikel: Yes

Covington:  Yes

8. RESOLUTION NO. 2022-04: A RESOLUTION DECLARING INTENTION TO CONTINUE
TO LEVY A FIRE SUPPRESSION ASSESSMENT AND SUPPLEMENTAL FIRE
SUPPRESSION ASSESSMENT ON ALL PARCELS OF REAL PROPERTY FOR FISCAL
YEAR 2022-23 FOR THE RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
(ACTION ITEM) (00:12:19)

MOTION:

SECOND:

ROLL CALL VOTE: 5-0
Hill: Yes
Davidson: Yes
Bowman: Yes

Mikel: Yes

Covington:  Yes
9. RECRUITMENT AND RETENTION UPDATE (00:16:10)

Chief Johnson gave update on new recruits in academy. Department is fully staffed, but one more
person may be leaving, and one person on worker’s compensation leave. Potential for a station
brownout is high. Discussion regarding engineer vacancies, and options to avoid brownouts.

Public Comment
Vincent Wells
Annie Ziff

Tanya Little

10. POSSIBLE ACTION ITEM: APPROVE $625.00 TO PLACE %2 PAGE AD IN
MARKETPLACE MAGAZINE FOR STRATEGIC PLAN NOTICE (00:39:11)

Public Comment:
Tanya Little




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Motion by Director Hill to authorize expense of $625.00 to place an ad; seconded by Director
Bowman.

Director Bowman to forward ad to board members before publication.

ROLL CALL VOTE: 5-0

Hill: Yes
Davidson: Yes
Bowman: Yes
Mikel: Yes

Covington:  Yes

FIRE CHIEF’S REPORT (00:47:35)

Chief Johnson provided update; Fill the Boot happened today; training burns to happen soon. Fire trails

in Rodeo and Hercules have been cut.
STAFF REPORTS (00:51:49)
ASO Corcoran updated on website. Training and kick off call will be scheduled.

Public Comment:
Tanya Little

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS (00:59:46)

A. LAFCO-Director Mikel: Meeting was canceled, will attend next month’s meeting.
AD HOC BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS (01:00:26)

A. STRATEGIC PLAN RFP AD HOC COMMITTEE-kick off on Saturday, May 14",

B. BUDGET AD HOC COMMITTEE-Had one meeting, next meeting next week; on track to
deliver budget to Board.

MEASURE O (01:09:33)

A. OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE REPORT-Potential new candidate for committee; meeting on
Tuesday at 6:00 p.m.

LOCAL 1230 CORRESPONDENCE (01:12:33)
Vince Wells-commented re staffing; fill the boot.
AJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION (01:15:05)

Meeting adjourned to closed session at 8:15 p.m.



17. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION/CLOSED SESSION REPORT OUT (01:16:04)

Meeting reconvened to open session at 9:21 p.m. No reportable action; direction to staff and District
negotiator.

18. REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS (01:17:00)

Budget workshop & review; continued website updates; recruitment timeline

19. ADJOURNMENT (01:19:00)

Meeting adjourned at 9:23 p.m.

Audio from this board meeting can be heard at www.rhfd.org
Number in parenthesis is time stamp where agenda item begins.

Board Vice Chair


http://www.rhfd.org/

1:58 PM

7800| General Fund Rodeo Hercules Fire District

06/03/22
Transmittal Report
May 2022
Date Num Name Memo Account Amount
05/01/2022 W4102379WE American Messaging May 2022 2110 - Communications -36.56
05/01/2022 23747 IEDA INC May 2022 2310 - Professional/Specialized Servic -1,699.00
05/01/2022 May2022 The Standard May 2022 1060 - Group Insurance -580.00
05/01/2022 3445 Harshwal & Company LLP FY 20-21 AUDIT 2310 - Professional/Specialized Servic -17,336.00
05/02/2022 228803367 Orkin Station 76 Monthly 2281 - Maintenance of Buildings -128.00
05/05/2022 May2022 Health Care Dental May 2022 1060 - Group Insurance -2,146.07
05/06/2022 9132 FASIS FASIS refund 1070 - Worker's Compensation Insurance 4,763.00
05/06/2022 121 9741 Plan Check 9741 - Fire Prevention Plan Review 610.00
05/06/2022 122 9741 Plan Check 9741 - Fire Prevention Plan Review 610.00
05/06/2022 002681 9741 Plan Check 9741 - Fire Prevention Plan Review 610.00
05/06/2022 354 9741 Plan Check 9741 - Fire Prevention Plan Review 243.00
05/06/2022 10347 9980 Report Fee 9980 - Miscellaneous Revenue 5.00
05/10/2022 185 OFA Balance-Hercules 9010 - Property Taxes-Current Secured 48,828.66
05/16/2022 8618 Wolf Consulting Group Pre-employment screening 2310 - Professional/Specialized Servic -1,060.00
05/17/2022 75-18889206-MAY  P.G.&E. 75-04/13-05/11/22 2120 - Utilities -25.50
05/18/2022 815173272 Vision Service Plan June 2022 1060 - Group Insurance -245.80
05/18/2022 194 1718SEC SPT ADV 71421-41222 9011 - Property Tax-Supplemental 52.71
05/18/2022 194 1920 SPT ADV 71421-41222 9011 - Property Tax-Supplemental 1,294.98
05/18/2022 194 1819 SEC SPT ADV 71421-41222 9011 - Property Tax-Supplemental 206.35
05/18/2022 194 2122SEC SPT ADV 71421-41222 9011 - Property Tax-Supplemental 111,657.50
05/18/2022 194 1920 UNS SPT ADV 71421-41222 9011 - Property Tax-Supplemental 18.78
05/18/2022 194 2021 UNS SPTADV 71421-41222 9011 - Property Tax-Supplemental 86.81
05/18/2022 194 1617 SEC SPT ADV 71421-41222 9011 - Property Tax-Supplemental 10.62
05/18/2022 194 2021 SEC SPT ADV 71421-41222 9011 - Property Tax-Supplemental 18,243.56
05/21/2022 9907035844 Verizon Wireless 04/22-05/21 2110 - Communications -608.50
05/23/2022 192845 Meyers Nave April 2022 2310 - Professional/Specialized Servic -2,813.90
05/24/2022 75-917337TMAY P.G.&E. 75-04/23-05/23/22 2120 - Utilities -62.63
05/25/2022 293447 Bauer Compressors Annual Testing 2270 - Repairs & Services of Equipment -1,093.20
05/25/2022 1717064 Municipal Emergency Services Wildland Face Mask 2474 - Firefighting Supplies -777.48
05/25/2022 190 Contra Costa County Tax Collector 21/22 RDA 33401 Pass Thru 9591 - RDA Non Property Tax Pass Thru 239,810.35
05/25/2022 190 Contra Costa County Tax Collector 21/22033401 SPT Pass Thru 9591 - RDA Non Property Tax Pass Thru 43,881.85
05/26/2022 75-25344-MAY EBMUD 75-03/24-05/24/22 2120 - Utilities -182.36

Page 1 of 2



1:58 PM
06/03/22

05/26/2022 965664324-225
05/26/2022 93559
05/26/2022 93560
05/27/2022 INV061314
05/27/2022 188
05/27/2022 189
05/27/2022 189
05/27/2022 193
05/27/2022 193
05/27/2022 193
05/27/2022 193
05/31/2022 75-53843-MAY
05/31/2022 191
05/31/2022 192

7800| General Fund Rodeo Hercules Fire District

Sprint

Vallejo Fire Extinguisher

Vallejo Fire Extinguisher
Goodyear

Contra Costa County Tax Collector
Contra Costa County Tax Collector

Contra Costa County Tax Collector

EBMUD

Transmittal Report

May 2022
04/23-05/22

76-Annual maintenance

75-Annual maintenance

7500-Tires

RPTTF Residual Distribution

21/22 33607 Supplemental Pass Thru
21/22 RDA 33607 Pass Thru
1819UNS SPTADV41321-71321

1920 UNS SPTADV 41321-71321
1819 UNS SPT ADV 71321 Correction
1920UNS SPT ADV to 7 13 21 Correction
75-03/24-05/24/22

CY UNS 1% to 043022

PY UNS 1% to 040322

2110 -
2270 -
2270 -
2273 -
9010 -
9010 -
9010 -
9011 -
9011 -
9011 -
9011 -
2120 -
9020 -
9035 -

Communications

Repairs & Services of Equipment
Repairs & Services of Equipment
Central Garage-Tires

Property Taxes-Current Secured
Property Taxes-Current Secured
Property Taxes-Current Secured
Property Tax-Supplemental
Property Tax-Supplemental
Property Tax-Supplemental
Property Tax-Supplemental
Utilities

Property Tax-Current Unsecured

Property Tax-Prior Unsecured

-170.17
-657.06
-100.00

-1,474.14
127,843.20
10,609.16
166,726.71
-53.34
-199.12
53.44
199.12
-300.92
17,489.24
1,052.94

Page 2 of 2



RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Directors, RODEO HERCULES FIRE DISTRICT
FROM: Darren Johnson, Interim Fire Chief
DATE: June 8, 2022
RE: Fiscal Year 2022/23 Preliminary Budget
BACKGROUND

CA H&S 8 13890 requires that on or before September 30 of each year, a district board shall adopt a final
budget which shall conform to the accounting and budgeting procedures for special districts contained in
Subchapter 3 (commencing with Section 1031.1) of, and Article 1 (commencing with Section 1121) of
Subchapter 4 of, Chapter 2 of Division 2 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations. If the board
cannot adopt a budget before that deadline, the previous fiscal year budget will remain until a budget is
adopted. Before the current fiscal year-end, a preliminary budget is adopted and utilized based on
anticipated revenues.

The Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection District is an autonomous special district under CA H&S 813800. Revenue
to the Fire District is primarily derived from ad valorem property tax with an average established tax rate of
11% annually. In addition, there are two separate property-based special benefit assessments and one tax
measure. The anticipated annual revenue from these funding sources totals 8.9 million dollars for this fiscal
year.

At present, the Fiscal Year 2022/23 proposed revenues are expected to be $8,669,914 and
Expenditures are anticipated to be $8,612,966. The result is a year end fund balance of $56,9481.

Since 2008, Fire District revenues declined primarily due to property tax diversions and state take-a-ways.
(ERAF). In 2011 the governor's office abolished redevelopment agencies in the State of California with the
intent of returning to source lost property tax increment. Currently, the District receives no Redevelopment
pass-through monies from the properties located in the City of Hercules.

In 2016 exploration of additional revenue streams was deemed necessary to protect the Fire District's tax base
due to declining revenue, economic considerations, and state fiscal emergency impacts. In November of 2016,
with community support, the Fire District successfully passed "Measure O," a Ballot Measure for a parcel Tax
within the District. Without retaining this parcel tax, the Fire District would return to a single station model.
Currently, Measure O represents 30% of the Fire District's revenue.

EFFICIENCIES

The Fire District will continue to work with its Battalion 7 partners to provide service to the community
regarding emergency operations.

The Fire District enjoys a cooperative relationship with the United Professional Firefighters of Contra Costa
County. The current MOU with District represented employees will expire on June 30 of this year. Negotiations

1 This figure does not include fund balances carried over from prior years.



for a new MOU are currently underway.

PRELIMINARY BUDGET

The staff has prepared the budget based on fiscal forecasting, revenue projections, and audited fund
balances.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff is recommending approval of a preliminary budget of $8,612,966. Changes identified by the Board
of Directors during the budget workshop will be reflected in the final budget which will be brought
before the board at the August 10, 2022 Regular meeting.



Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection
District

BUDGET




RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-23 Budget

. MISSION STATEMENT

Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection District

Mission Statement

This organization's mission is to provide the highest level of service to the community; mitigate
the devastating effects of fires and other disasters, deliver emergency medical services;
educate the public, and maintain a constant state of readiness.

Core Values

To that end, we value:

Service to the Community
Public Trust
Professionalism
Educated Work Force
Compassion
Teamwork
Safety, Health & Welfare of the Organization

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is the elected policy-making body for the Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection
District. The Directors provide financial oversight and strategic policy direction to maximize the
public value of Fire District services

Damon Covington (Board Chair)
Steve Hill (Vice Chair)
Marie Bowman
Charles Davidson
Robyn Mikel

Interim Fire Chief
Darren Johnson

The Fire Chief is the Chief Executive Officer of the Fire District. In collaboration with the Board

of Directors and partnership with all members of the organization, the Fire Chief provides
direction, protection, and order to the Fire District.

i|lPage



RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-23 Budget

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
. MISSION STATEMENT ... i
. EXECULIVE SUMIMAIY ..ot e 1
A, Transmittal Letter. ..o 1
B.  DiStrict OVEIVIEW .....uuiiiiiiiiiiee et 3
[II.  FIRE OPERATIONS.....cotitiiiiiiiiiiiieieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 4
VII. APPARATUS REPLACEMENT RESERVE .Error! Bookmark not defined.
A. Budget Overview and Summary .......ccccoovvviieeiieeeiiiciee e, 7
B.  Fire District Financial POSItion .......coooeviiviiiiiiiicceceeece 8
IV. Statement of Unfunded Liabilities: CCCERA & OPEB UAALS......... 10
V.  BUDGET POLICIES.....ccoiiiiiieieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee, 11

A. Policy for Reserves and Fund Balances and Goals for
Reserves and Fund Balance Maintenance........ccoooeeeviiiiiiiiiiiinnnns 11
VI.  FIRE DISTRICT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES & FUND BALANCES....13
A.  Fire District REVENUES........iiiiiiiiieiiiceece et 13
B.  Fire District EXpenditures .........cccoeeeeveviieiiieiiieeeeieeeeeveeeeeen, 17
C.  Fire District Fund Balances ..........ccoovvviiviiiiiiiiinneeeeeceeceeiiinnns 19
VIl. GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES —check page 4...........ccceeeeeennnnn. 19
VIII. DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES: ...cooiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeee, 19
IX. FIVE YEAR REVENUE & EXPENDITURE PROJECTIONS.......cccevvvreeeene. 20

ii|]Page



RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-23 Budget

1. Executive Summary
A. Transmittal Letter
June 8, 2022

Board of Directors

Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection District
1680 Refugio Valley Road

Hercules, CA 94547

Members of the Board of Directors:

| am pleased to present the Fiscal Year 2022-23 Budget for the Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection
District. The creation of this budget wouldn't have been possible without the support of the Fire
District Board of Directors. Its continued leadership has allowed the Fire District to reach financial
stability and provide a Budget with complete financial transparency. With the assistance of the
Board of Directors budget ad hoc committee and the Fire District's financial advisor (MRG"),
District staff provide this budget based on the framework developed over the past few years.

This Fire District has faced many challenges over the years but nothing as significant as the recent
global pandemic. Fortunately, the Fire District has not realized any significant economic impacts
but remains vigilant in its preparation. Using the information obtained by historical data and our
financial consulting team, the budget is designed to meet the operational needs of the Fire
District.

A complete budget narrative, with supporting documentation, is again our framework for budget
creation and is based on accounting principles outlined in the 2016 Fiscal Analysis and
Stabilization report. Development of our annual budget is based on the needs and priorities of
the Fire District. The development, approval, and implementation of the budget are critical to
proper management the district's finances.

Although the Fire District has achieved a more stable footing than in prior years, future
uncertainties will dictate the ability to stay on that footing. The Fire District continues to bolster
its financial stabilization fund to mitigate unplanned fiscal impacts. To reinforce these efforts,
the Fire District Board of Directors authorized staff to enter into a contract to update their
Strategic Plan to help identify challenges to the District and help provide a roadmap for the future
of the District

As always, the Fire District will continue to be diligent in its fiscal responsibilities to the public.
The Fire District is continually seeking ways to streamline operations and reduce costs.

| am pleased to report that with the efforts and dedication of this Board, the Budget for FY 2022-
23 is balanced. The Fire District is currently maintaining both of its fire stations at full staffing.

1|Page



RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-23 Budget

The budget does not contain any unnecessary increases in expenditures for personnel costs
(other than scheduled merit increases?), any capital expenditures other than those required to
maintain the facilities, and necessary operational and support activities. Due to current
economic uncertainties and price increases, the proposed budget does not include any surplus
fund balance. Allocations of General Fund reserves offset unforeseen expenses during the fiscal
year.

We estimate the District will have a fund balance of $6,300,000 as of June 30, 2022.

During this budget preparation process, we have continued to review existing practices and
identify and implement cost saving opportunities while seeking to expand high demand services.
This budget will enable the Fire District to maintain high-quality fire and emergency response
while maintaining a top priority on the health and safety of the public and our personnel.

In summary, | would like to express appreciation to the Board of Directors for their continued
support, direction, and dedication to public safety.

In continued dedicated service,

Darren Johnson
Interim Fire Chief

1 The current MOU between the District and represented employees will expire on June 30, 2022

2|Page



RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-23 Budget

B. District Overview

Organizational Chart

Board of Directors

. .
.

Administrative

Fire Fire Chief

Inspector ‘ \
Administrative
Battalion Chief Assistant

Firefighter Firefighter

Services Officer

Firefighter

gog

3|Page



RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-23 Budget

District Boundaries

e — — . ——

T & ! 2 -
o Tany Av: \
,'kos

mifﬂ* im DH
oo () Fvtiaen [ Ut ) Chonas
B asroiso | oo I w0

-
[ comcotscarn T ) byt

R el e e e R
oy pnfle gy, A -1 vuiy

- e N e b b S e 8 S

]
¢ & 2 Sy e -
” - o - a e o b # b Sy b
frine toon hmagy X bt T e A T T s e 3
e e e {

. FIRE OPERATIONS

Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection District is an all-risk department operating individual fire companies
specially trained to respond to residential and commercial fires, refinery and industry-related incidents,
wildland fires, vehicle extrication, technical rescue, and hazard materials first responder duties. Engine
companies are also tasked with determining the origin and cause of fires and providing rescue and
advanced life support services. The Fire District provides a minimum of one advanced life support
paramedic on duty 365 days a year in the Town of Rodeo and the City of Hercules.

Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection Fire District operates within Battalion 7, a jointly operated Battalion
with Pinole Fire Department and the Contra Costa County Fire Protection Fire District. Each
participating entity provides a single Battalion Chief to ensure the consistent establishment of incident

4|Page



RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-23 Budget

command, firefighter safety, and judicious resource management at emergencies. The Battalion also
serves the outlying communities of Rodeo-Hercules, including Pinole, Tara Hills, Bayview, Montalvan
Manor, Montara Bay, East Richmond Heights, San Pablo, El Sobrante, unincorporated Contra Costa
County, and Martinez. Each of these areas presents a unique set of complex hazards, and the rapid
establishment of fire ground command is essential to the successful resolution of an array of calls for
service.

The Fire District also responds to automatic aid (additional unit response on a call regardless of
jurisdictional boundaries) and mutual aid (request for additional resources for large incidents or due to
multiple simultaneous incidents). Citizens of participating communities benefit from this sharing of
resources and a regionalized approach. These extended responses have included the Contra Costa
County Fire Protection Fire District, Crockett-Carquinez Fire Protection Fire District, Pinole Fire
Department, Richmond Fire Department, El Cerrito Fire Department, Moraga/Orinda Fire Protection
Fire District, and Vallejo Fire Department.

The Fire District also participates in the California Fire Assistance Agreement for the State of California
and Federal Fire Agencies.  This agreement, which the Office of Emergency Services manages, has
called upon RHFPD to provide Mutual Aid resources throughout California, Oregon, and Nevada.

Strategic Plan

In February 2022, the Fire District entered into a contract with Fitch and Associates to produce a
strategic plan for the District. This plan will provide administrative as well as an operational roadmap
for success of the District moving forward. Completion of the plan is projected to be in September
2022.

Fire Prevention:

Engine companies conduct fire and life safety inspections of all schools and Businesses within the Fire
District. Engine companies also conduct an inspection of public and private properties for hazardous
and/or combustible fuels, unabated annual grasses, urban blight and give notifications to abate said
hazards.

The inspection of residential care facilities, licensed childcare, and adult care facilities, commercial
tenant improvements, new construction is addressed with an independent contractor. Construction
plan review and compliance with Fire District, local and state requirements, meetings with developers
and contractors are addressed with district staff.

Apparatus:
The Fire District operates a variety of Fire Apparatus* including:

e One 100-foot Quint Ladder Truck

e One Type 1 Rescue Pumper

e Two Type 3 Wild Land Engines

e One Type 1 Rescue Pumper (Reserve)

e One 75-foot Quint Ladder Truck (Reserve)

5|Page



RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-23 Budget

*Fire apparatus is identified into standard category typing within the Incident Command System to
organize multiagency resources through the National Interagency Fire Center and the Office of
Emergency Services.

The Fire District maintains a variety of fire apparatus and equipment to meet the public safety needs of
our service area, including major highways and streets, undeveloped wildland, developed urban
residential, and refinery/industrial areas.

Incident Calls-2021
Incident Type Number of Calls
Station 75 |Station 76 (Total
Fire 86 64 150
EMS/Rescue 833 799 1,632
Hazardous Condition 17 28 45
Service Call 66 118 184
Good Intent 221 308 529
False Call 61 77 138
Other 1 2 3
TOTALS 1,285 1,396 2,681

5 Year Call Volume Comparison

2019
m Station 75 1,176 1,177 i, 155 1,215 1,285

m Station 76 1,442 1,370 1,431 1,269 1,396

m Station 75 m Station 76

6|Page



RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-23 Budget

A. Budget Overview and Summary

Structure for Budgeting and Accounting:

As a single-purpose fire authority, the Fire District maintains one governmental account. Within this
single account are four separate funds. They are the General Fund, Measure O Fund, Capital Fund, and
the Fire Facilities Fees Fund. The Fire District reports the majority of its financial activities in the
General Fund. Revenues and expenditures are reported in accordance with government accounting
standards. Government funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when funds
are available if the revenues are collected within 60 days after year-end; expenditures are recorded
when the related liability is incurred.

Budget Control and Amendments:

The Fire Chief is responsible for ensuring expenses are within program allocations and shall adopt
budget policies necessary to carry out that responsibility within his authority. Except in prescribed
emergencies, no expenditure of funds shall be authorized unless enough funds have been appropriated
by the Board of Directors as outlined in this budget. The Fire District has three distinct formal
budgetary review and approval cycles within a given fiscal year: Preliminary, Final, and Mid-Year
(Amended) Budget if needed. The final budget is approved after holding a public hearing and formal
adoption by the Fire District Board of Directors. The budget includes the proposed expenditures of the
Fire District and the means of financing them. The Board reviews total budgeted appropriations and
any necessary amendments throughout the year. Formal budgetary integration at the fund level is
employed as a management control device to monitor budget-to-actual performance throughout the
fiscal year. Quarterly budget financial reports are also provided to the Board and are available to the
general public. The Fire District's Budget is adopted on a basis consistent with the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board method (GASB).

Budget Goals for Fiscal Year 2022-23:

As the Board and community are aware, the Fire District has struggled in the past to maintain solid
financial footing. The much-needed replacement revenue from Measure O has improved the Fire
District's finances, adding financial stability to the Fire District. This stability will allow the Fire District
to make contributions to its Capital and economic stabilization fund. In preparing the Budget, Fire
District staff has developed a budget that recognizes the Fire District's current obligations and provides
accurate information on the fiscal realities and the global economic impacts faced by the Fire District.
The Fire District will continue its efforts to secure additional revenue sources to stabilize its financial
future.

7|Page



RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-23 Budget

Projected Revenues:

The FY 2022-23 budget projects a total revenue of $8,669,914, a decrease of 3.7% from the prior-year
budget. This revenue projection is based on the following assumptions: $4,159,511 in Property Tax
revenues, $2,584,204 in Measure O revenue, $1,362,081 in Benefit Assessment revenue, and $564,117
in Intergovernmental Revenue. Unfortunately, due to uncertainties in new development and when
building permits will be issued within the Fire District, it is unknown the amount of Developer Impact
Fees that may be realized.

In November 2016, the Fire District successfully passed a parcel tax measure for maintaining
emergency services within the Fire District. Measure O revenues are allocated for Fire District
operations and fully expended to provide emergency services during the budget year. We anticipate
some reductions in the potential total Measure O revenues due to the provision for senior exemptions.
The initial revenue projections indicate approximately $2.6 million generated for FY 2022-23. With
deductions of the 618 qualified senior exemptions received for fiscal year 2022-23, that amount is
reduced by $147,084 ($238.00 per parcel).

Fiscal Year 2022-23 Projected Expenditures
Budget expenditures include full staffing for two stations. Full staffing compliment for FY 2022-23
includes:

e One Fire Chief!

e One Battalion Chief

e Six Captains

e Six Engineers

e Six Firefighters

e One Part-Time Fire Inspector

e One full-time Administrative Services Officer
e One full-time Administrative Assistant

A full-time staffing configuration has reduced the Fire District's overtime costs while providing
permanent employees to staff the two-station configuration.

The budget includes the following assumptions and significant items:

Increases in medical benefits costs for current and retired employees. (570,031).
Budgeting apparatus lease costs in the General Fund (5200,000).
Deferred facilities maintenance.

B. Fire District Financial Position

The FY 2022-23 Budget is a balanced budget based on current and predicted revenue and expenditure
projections.

8|Page



RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-23 Budget

The Fire District still struggles with significant revenue reductions imposed by outside influences,
including State reductions in subventions and sequestration of property tax through the dissolution of
redevelopment agencies. Fortunately, Fire District voters supported and approved a stable revenue
source through Measure O in November 2016. This replacement revenue source will continue to
stabilize the Fire District revenues for the foreseeable future.

During the economic downturn of 2012-2016, the Fire District was forced to reduce its services
significantly and used virtually its entire financial stabilization fund. As indicated within this document,
the Board has declared its intent to rebuild a stabilization fund for the Fire District whenever possible
to assure stable service provision in the event of an unexpected circumstance.

Fire District Financial Issues

The Fire District's financial position has improved with the revenue provided by Measure O. Fully
funding for two fire stations and providing uninterrupted emergency service is the continued primary
focus when creating the budget. The development, implementation, establishment of an industry-
standard budgeting and accounting system have streamlined processes and built a budget based on
actual revenue and expenses.

Financial Issues

Most of the financial issues faced by the Fire District originate externally and are difficult or impossible
to control. A number of these involve actions by outside agencies, the current pandemic, or results
from past economic conditions outside the Board's control.

These issues include the following:

e Within the dissolved Hercules Redevelopment, property development is excluded from
allocating the total ad-valorem property tax' pass through' funds to the Fire District.

e High-density rental development within the City of Hercules is causing service demands
without corresponding revenue. Multi-story high-density residential and commercial
projects require additional equipment and resources to protect. Although the Fire District
was successful in increasing its Fire Facilities Impact Fee schedule, it was not to the full
extent necessary to provide adequate funding to acquire all additional equipment needed
to provide suitable fire and emergency response to these areas.

e Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Agency (CCCERA) retirement system costs for
current employees' ongoing payments and the unfunded liabilities (UAAL) incurred for the
pensions for current and retired employees. These two costs total $2,259,896,
representing 26% of the projected FY 2022-23 personnel costs for the Fire District's 23
employees.

e Although the Fire District's represented personnel contribute 3.75% of their base salary
toward the Fire District's Other Post Employee Benefits (OPEB), the ongoing and accruing

9|Page



RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-23 Budget

unfunded liability for the Fire District's retiree medical program has and will continue to rise
as medical insurance costs increase over time. The Fire District is currently not contributing
to the Annual Required Contribution (ARC). If the Fire District does not set aside additional
funds for this benefit program, the unfunded liability will increase significantly over time.
Current Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) accounting principles require the
Fire District to clearly state the unfunded portion of both its retirement and OPEB programs
(See Section Ill. Statement of Unfunded Liabilities: CCCERA UAAL and OPEB UAAL for
details).

Recommendation

e Continue to monitor and schedule apparatus replacement as needed. Direct staff to pursue
alternate funding sources to assist in apparatus replacement.

This Budget document contains several Budget Management, Control, and Reserve Policies (see
Section IV. Budget Policies for details). These policies describe important fiscal control areas to ensure
that the Board's financial decisions are implemented thoroughly and professionally, and that detailed
and transparent financial reporting is provided to the Board and public on an ongoing basis.

V. Statement of Unfunded Liabilities: CCCERA & OPEB UAALS

The Fire District provides two benefit programs to employees that require ongoing contributions to be
sustainable. These are: (1) the pension benefits provided through contracts with the Contra Costa
County Employees' Retirement Association (CCCERA) and (2) "other post-employment benefits"
(medical insurance) for qualifying retirees (OPEB program). The costs of these programs are funded
through two types of contributions: the current or 'normal’ costs and the contributions required to
fund the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL). This calculation is the difference between the
actuarially stated amount needed to pay for future benefits and the current funding set aside for those
benefits. The two programs treat those two components differently, as described below.

The Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association (CCCERA) retirement program is
governed by an independent Board of Directors. The CCCERA program mandates that participating
employers pay into the fund for both the normal and UAAL costs annually. CCCERA utilizes regularly
scheduled actuarial studies to ensure funding requirements are met and that the benefits are available
to retirees when due. The normal and UAAL rates fluctuate based on numerous factors, including the
return on investments for recent years, changes in assumptions regarding future return on
investments, changes in assumptions regarding program participants' longevity, and other factors.

The Fire District's CCCERA contribution rates in FY 2022-23 for the normal costs will be 20.2% of payroll
for "Legacy" employees and 16.98% for California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act employees
(PEPRAZ). The UAAL payment for FY 2022-23 is estimated at $1,684,896.

2 PEPRA employees are employees that are hired on or after January 1, 2013, and receive pension benefits following the
California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act

10|Page



RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-23 Budget

The Fire District's current overall unfunded liability as of June 30, 2021 for the CCCERA retirement
system is $6,595,543.

The Fire District's Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) Program funds retiree medical insurance.
The Fire District pays the cost of qualifying retiree medical insurance based on an agreement with the
employees. The Fire District is currently paying the full cost of that coverage to retirees—the 'normal’
costs of the OPEB program. For FY 2022-23, $452,635 is budgeted for this program. This includes
matching funds of 3.75% from the general fund budget to the California Employers' Retiree Benefit
Trust (CERBT). The CERBT Fund is a Section 115 trust fund dedicated to pre-funding Other Post-
Employment Benefits (OPEB) for all eligible California public agencies. By joining this trust fund,
California public agencies can help finance future costs from investment earnings provided by CalPERS.
As of March 31, 2022, the District’s balance in the CERBT Fund is $3,062,938.

While unfunded liability for pension and retiree healthcare are significant obligations of the District, we
continue to pay down and manage these liabilities in accordance with Board direction.

V. BUDGET POLICIES

The following Budget policies were adopted by the Board of Directors during the FY 2017/2018 budget
adoption and currently remain in place with no additions or deletions.

A. Policy for Reserves and Fund Balances and Goals for Reserves and Fund Balance
Maintenance

Fund Balance and Reserve Policy

A Fund Balance is defined as the Fire District's balance sheet assets less liabilities, which equals a Fund
Balance. There are varieties of defined fund balances that are based on the extent to which the Fire
District is bound to honor specific spending constraints.

The Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection Fire District utilizes the following definitions for its Budgetary
Practices:

Unassigned Fund Balance

An Unassigned Fund Balance is defined as any Fund Balance amounts not classified as a
Restricted Fund Balance, Committed Fund Balance, or an Assigned Fund Balance.

Assigned Fund Balance

An Assigned Fund Balance is intended to be used by the Fire District for a specific purpose;
however, the activity does not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed.

11|Page



RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-23 Budget

Committed Fund Balance

A Committed Fund Balance is defined as funds that can only be used for a specific purpose, as
determined by formal action of the Fire District's Board of Directors.

Restricted Fund Balance

A Restricted Fund Balance is defined as funds that can only be spent for specific purposes for
which the funds were intended. These typically include expenditures controlled by outside
agencies such as the State and Federal Government, employee retirement, medical and other
funds, as well as funds required for surety for debt obligations.

The establishment and maintenance of the Fire District's financial stability and sustainability are of
primary importance to the Board of Directors. The Board has established the following policies for the
Fire District to implement.

Financial Stabilization Fund —the purpose of this reserve is to provide the Fire District with the
needed flexibility to provide for unanticipated changes in revenues or expenditures and to assure the
provision of stable services to the Fire District's residents and businesses.

It is recommended that the Board establish the goal of having funds for four months of operations in
this Unassigned Fund Balance. The Board should designate funds to be allocated for this purpose as
part of its annual Budget process.

General Fund Committed Fund Balance—the purpose of this reserve is to provide the Fire District with
the opportunity to address growing unfunded liabilities in employee retirement benefits. If funds are
accumulated by the Fire District in this account, they will only be used to retire the obligations for the
retirement and other post-retirement benefits (medical insurance) costs the Fire District currently
provides. Using funds to 'prepay' these obligations will provide significant cost savings for the Fire
District over the life of the obligations.

It is recommended that the Board strive to set aside funds to address the UAAL associated with the
OPEB program.

Assigned Fund Balance—included in the assigned fund balance are funds for specific program activities
that benefit from a protected source of funding. These are generally specific programs that include
high-cost items that last for many years. Fire apparatus, equipment, and buildings are examples.

Capital Facilities (buildings and facilities) maintenance is a second major Fire District obligation that
includes higher cost periodic funding. These are expenditures that are less frequent and require
planning to accomplish. The budget does not include a capital replacement reserve, but the Board may
want to consider a reserve for this purpose in the future.

Replacement of Fire District equipment is a third major Fire District obligation. The Fire District owns
several pieces of equipment that have a replacement cost of more than $5,000 per unit. These are
expenditures that are less frequent and require planning to accomplish. The current budget does not

12|Page



RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-23 Budget

include an equipment replacement reserve, but the Board may want to consider a reserve for this
purpose in the future.

The Board will annually review the status of the Fire District's reserves—including the General Fund
Unassigned Fund Balance, the General Fund Committed Fund Balance, the Assigned Fund Balances for
Apparatus, Capital Equipment, and UAAL for the Fire District's Retirement and OPEB obligations. The
Board will designate funding levels for each as the Board determines its priorities for the Fire District's
short and long-term commitments. The Board will conduct its review based on the Staff's Third Quarter
Financial review, which will include the estimated year-end fund balances in all the Fire District's
reserves.

VI. FIRE DISTRICT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES & FUND BALANCES
A. Fire District Revenues

The Fire District has historically received most of its revenue from property taxes generated within its
service boundary. There are several components to the property tax income, but the largest source of
that category has been the Fire District's share of the ad valorem (1% of assessed value) property tax
collected by the County and distributed to qualifying agencies.

The Fire District historically received a "pass-through" of 100% of the ad valorem property tax received
by the County in the Rodeo redevelopment project area and a portion in the City of Hercules
redevelopment project areas. The dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency has reduced the pass-
through. The state's requirement that property tax collected in the former Hercules redevelopment
project areas cannot be distributed to qualified agency recipients until the Recognized Obligation
Payments have been completed.

Other revenue sources are generated through voter-approved special taxes, including two long-
standing fire district benefit assessments and the 2016 Measure O parcel tax that became effective on
July 1, 2017.

Property taxes, the Benefit Assessment, and Measure O equal 93% percent of the revenues received
annually, Miscellaneous/other revenues equal 7% of total revenue:

e Property taxes $4,159,512 47%
e Benefit Assessment $1,362,081 16%
e Measure O $2,584,204 30%
e Miscellaneous other S 564,117 7%

100%

Property tax and Fire District Benefit Assessment revenues have been in place since the Fire District
incorporated, and the voters approved the Measure O funding in 2016. These three sources of
revenue will provide a stable long-term revenue stream for the Fire District. While the Fire District
Benefit Assessment and Measure O revenues are based on set annual amounts, the property tax is "ad

13|Page



RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-23 Budget

valorem" based on commercial property and residential dwellings. The annual revenue from property
tax varies year to year, depending on the general economic conditions and assessed value of the real

property.

Total proposed revenues for all funds in FY 2022-23 are $8,669,914.

REVENUE DISTRIBUTION:

\\\ BN = . \
~ Other: 7 (T%}fBeneht Assessment: 16 (16%) ' Measure O: 30 [SO%}J' “Property Taxes: 47 (47%)

4 |Page




RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

2022-23 Budget

2022-23 ESTIMATED REVENUE
RODEO HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
REVENUE ALL FUNDS

FY2022-2023 BUDGET

Prop. Taxes-Current secured
Prop. Tax-Supplemental
Prop. Tax-Unitary

Prop. Tax-Current Unsecured
Prop Tax-Prior-Secured

Prop Tax-Prior-Supplemental

Prop Tax-Prior-Unsecured
TOTAL PROPERTY TAXES

TOTAL BENEFIT DISTRICT

9010

9013
9020
9030
9031
9035

H/O Prop Tax Relief
OtherIn Lieu Taxes

RDA NonProp-Tax Pass Thru
Earnings on Investment

Fire Prevention Plan Review
Misc. Current Services

Other Revenue/Measure H
TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL
Measure O

Grant Funds

9385
9580
9591
9181
9741
9980
9895

3,878,166 | 3,872,503 4,211,244 3,872,503 3,878,166
105,584 83,438 105,584 85,000 85,000

74,884 73,996 74,000 78,900 78,900

112,167 136,572 130,000 136,572 137,000

(8,569) (5,361) (5,361) (14,285) (14,285)

(4,981) (4,137) (4,981) (5,850) (5,860)

(948) 2,050 (1,000) 590 590

4,156,303 4,159,060 4,509,486 4,153,421 4,159,512
Benefit District | 9066 | 1,347,040 1361249 | 1361249 |  1362,081| 1,362,081
1,347,040 1,361,249 1,361,249 1,362,081 1,362,081

29,956 28,655 29,956 29,000 29,956

4,391 192 170 -

375,000 | 469,725 427,275 439,810 375,000

12,296 10,864 14,000 10,000 14,000

55,000 20,000 30,000 30,000

23,109 29,475 23,109 23,000 23,000

85,592 85,504 85,592 85,592 92,161

580,953 628,614 600,124 617,572 564,117

2,500,704 | 2,502,195 2,519,748 2,513,864 2,584,204

100,000 - -

Development Impact Fee
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE

2,600,704

2,502,195

2,519,748

2,513,864

2,584,204

TOTAL REVENUE

8,685,000

8,651,117

8,646,937

8,669,914

15|Page



RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-23 Budget

RODEO HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 REVENUE BUDGET (MEASURE "0")

ADOPTED AUDITED ADOPTED PROJECTED ~ PROPOSED
DESCRIPTION GL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET FOR

CODE FY2020-21 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 6/30/2022 FY2022-23
Beginning Fund Balance: 802,156 834,148 880,680
REVENUE 2,500,704 2,502,195 2,519,748 2,513,864 2,584,204
TOTAL MEASURE "0" REVENUE 2,500,704 2,502,195 2,519,748 2,513,864 | 2,584,204
Group Insurance Health Active Employee| 1060 433,504 452,926 468,184 454,301 505,639
Group Insurance - Retiree 1061 303,170 303,323 327,424 303,640 360,000

Group Insurance-OPEB Matching Funds 1060 70,000 64,507 92,635 59,682

CCCERA-UAAL payment 1044 1,639,704 1,639,704 1,684,896 1,639,704 1,684,896
County Collection Fee 3530 10,000 9,743 10,000 10,005 10,000
Total Expenditures 2,456,378 2,470,203 2,583,139 2,467,332 2,560,535

44 376

46

16|Page




RUDEU-HERCULES FIKE PRUITECTION DISITRICI 2UZ22-235 Budget

B. Fire District Expenditures

As discussed within this document, the Proposed Budget for FY 2022-23 is based on maintaining the
Fire District's two station configuration, is fully staffed and provides no increases in salaries or benefits.
It 'holds the line' on expenses to the extent possible. The total projected expenditures for FY 2022-23
are $8,612,966.

Salary Distribution

$57,276 $173,950

-
( .
536,000

$2,551,590

Holiday M Permanent M Temporary M Overtime FLSA
Pay Salaries Salaries

Benefits Distribution

Worker's Compensation
Unemployment
OPEB...
Group Insurance-...
Group...
Retirement-...
Retirement-...
FICA
Deferred...
$- $200,000 $400,000 $600,000 $800,000 $1,000,000 $1,200,000 $1,400,000 $1,600,000 $1,800,000

Deferred FICA - (0]3:) Worker's

| Compensation | 3.75 Matching | | Compensation
Series1 $14,400 $50,000 , $92,635 $1,000 $391,728

Unemployment

17| Page



RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-23 Budget

RODEO HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
EXPENDITURES for All FUNDS

FY2022-2023 BUDGET
ADOPTED ACTUAL ADOPTED PROJECTED PROPOSED
GL BUDGET AUDITED BUDGET ACTUALS  BUDGET

DESCRIPTION CODE FY2020-2021 FY2020-2021  FY2021-2022 FY2021-2022 FY2022-2023
Holiday Pay 1001 161,988 174,648 167,120 173,950
Permanent Salaries 1011 2,491,807 2,434,041 2,724,066 2,595,057 2,551,590
Drill/ Temporary Salaries 1013 54,960 51,775 54,960 46,842 36,000
Overtime 1014 512,784 839,099 660,413 1,005,000 657,878
Deferred Compensation 1015 10,800 10,800 10,800 10,800 14,400
FICA 1042 32,789 51,705 40,000 59,531 50,000
Retirement-Normal 1044 500,000 544,736 500,000 568,028 575,000
Retirement-UAAL 1044 1,639,704 1,639,704 1,684,896 1,684,896 1,684,896
Group Insurance 1060 565,698 573,708 530,667 530,667 660,757
Group Insurance-Retiree 1061 303,170 303,004 420,059 420,059 360,000
Unemployment Insurance 1063 1,000 564 1,000 1,000 1,000
Worker's Compensation Ins. 1070 280,000 250,642 320,000 326,416 391,728
TOTAL SALARIES AND BENEFITS $ 6,554,700 $ 6,699,777 $ 7,121,509 $ 7,415416 $ 7,157,199
Office Expenses 2100 28,490 31,519 22,850 23,152 22,850
Books/periodicals/subscriptions 2102 2,485 2,924 2,485 4,906 2,485
Communications 2110 206,223 186,442 225,375 208,380 225,375
Utilities 2120 34,823 32,746 36,323 37,051 36,323
Small Tools and Equipment 2130 1,400 1,247 23,500 1,678 18,000
Medical supplies 2140 13,320 55,930 78,000 25,000 48,000
Food 2150 4,420 1,515 4,420 3,431 4,420
Clothing &personal supplies 2160 13,320 13,540 13,320 13,325 13,320
Household expenses 2170 5,500 5,122 16,500 8,39%4 16,500
Publications and legal notices 2190 1,300 662 1,300 600 1,300
Memberships 2200 5,349 5,889 5,312 5,340 5,312
Rents and leases 2250 302,008 89,085 272,774 285,644 203,360
Repair & service equipment 2270 37,366 9,323 34,458 8,551 34,458
Vehicle repair services 2271 80,000 53,547 80,000 25,000 45,000
Gas & oil supplies 2272 8,600 2,304 8,100 4,754 8,100
Vehicle maintenance-tires 2273 14,000 4,516 10,000 2,924 10,000
Maint. Radio& electrical equip. 2276 30,010 46,753 57,380 550 57,380
Maintenance building & grounds 2281 123,350 152,800 151,450 52,274 139,050
Employee fravel expenses 2303 4,560 2,510 4,560 6,876 4,560
Professional/Specialized service 2310 312,519 281,470 293,088 336,091 390,412
Data processing service 2315 960 792 960 750 960
Data processing supplies 2316 323 - 323 - 323
Information security 2326 2,194 1,709 2,194 2,075 2,194
Insurance 2360 46,250 42,168 60,832 56,750 60,832
Firefighting supplies 2474 65,815 86,437 56,770 60,000 56,770
Recreation/Physical Fitness 2476 1,000 3,592 2,000 - 1,300
Educational Supplies & Courses 2477 17,245 6,587 19,763 9,578 19,763
Other Special Departmental Exp: 2479 3,420 8,625 3,420 10,627 3,420
Interest on Notes & Warrants 3520 1,000 - 1,000 - 1,000
Tax Assessments 3530 23000 21,107 23,000 11235 23,000
Total Services & Supplies Expenses 1,390,250 1,150,859 1,511,457 1,204,936 1,455,767
Total Operational Expenses $7,944,950 $ 7,850,636 $ 8,632,966 $ 8,620,352 $ 8,612,966

18| Page



RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-23 Budget

C. Fire District Fund Balances

The Fire District's projected fund balances for the next five years are shown in Figure A

VIl. GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

The Proposed Budget expenditures assume the Fire District is operating at full staffing. Six vacant
positions were filled through recruitment during the 2021-22 fiscal year. The Fire District is currently
at full staffing and anticipates a full staffing complement for the 2022-23 fiscal year.

The ability to have achieved full staffing has reduced the Fire District's overtime costs and provided
permanent employees to staff the two-station configuration.

Some observations regarding the proposed expenditures:

e Approximately 83% of all expenses are employee-related (salaries, benefits, retirement,
etc.)

The items in the Professional Services Program are primarily continuations of prior expenditures
updated to reflect current costs. Several of the items are new or of note. The objects of note include:

e Contra Costa County Board of Elections: The Fire District holds a staggered general election
for Board Members that have reached the end of their term. $67,000 has been allocated
within this year's budget for board elections scheduled for November 2022.

e Target Solutions: Target Solutions is a web-based training program that is used throughout
Contra Costa County. This training platform allows all Battalion 7 cooperating agencies to
receive the same training as their counterparts. With the addition of the "Check It"
software upgrade, RHFD personnel will have the ability to properly track fleet assets
maintenance and the Department of Motor Vehicle Apparatus Checks.

e Streamline Automation Systems: Streamline Automation System is a cloud-based business
inspection software program. This program will assist the department in maintaining code
compliance and record retention for inspected properties throughout the Fire Districts.

VIIl. DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES:

A development impact fee is a monetary fee that a local government agency charges to an applicant in
connection with the approval of a development project for defraying all or a portion of the cost to
mitigate impacts created by new development adequately. The legal requirements for the enactment
of the development impact fees program are outlined in Government Code 66000 under the Mitigation
Fee Act. The City of Hercules and Contra Costa County Department of Conservation and Development
currently collect fees on behalf of the Fire District. The Fire District's current adopted fee structure

19|Page



RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-23 Budget

established by a Fire Facilities Impact Fee Study is as follows: Single Family Homes: $1,817, Multi-
Family Home: $1120.00, Accessory Dwelling Unit: $849.00, Commercial: $0.91 per square foot, Office
$01.21 per square foot, Industrial $0.52 per square foot and Hotel $110.00 per room. Fees that are
collected by the Fire District must be held in a separate account and accounted for in a different
revenue and expense balance sheet.

Annual report: §66006 (b)(1) requires that once each year, within 180 days of the close of the fiscal
year, the local agency must make available to the public the following information for each separate
account established to receive impact fee revenues.

IX. FIVE YEAR REVENUE & EXPENDITURE PROJECTIONS

Preparation of the Proposed Budget included creating Five-Year Revenue and Expenditure Projections
to provide the Board and Staff with a roadmap for financial decisions and policy. (See Figure A)

There are, however, several areas of risk worth noting:

e Asignificant portion of the Fire District's revenue (48%) is the property tax based on real
estate values. A disturbance in values will translate to diminished revenues.

e The projections include a limited increase of 2% per year for personnel-related costs, which
expenditure areas could essentially be consumed with high growth potential, including
health care for employees and retirees and UAAL payments for the retirement system.

Five Year Revenue vs. Expenditure Projection

242

24-25
REVEN UE EXPENSE

20| Page



RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 2022-23 Budget

FIGURE A:
RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Five-Year Projections for Revenue and Expenditures
FY2021-22 FY2022-23 FY2023-24 FY2024-25 FY2025-26 FY2026-27

Property taxes 4,509,486 4,159,512 4,284,297 4,412,826 4,545,211 4,681,567
Homeowners Tax Relief 29,956 29,956 30,855 31,780 32,734 33,716
Measure H EMS 85,593 92,161 85,593 85,593 85,593 85,593
Special Tax/Fire (Benefit Assessment) 1,361,248 1,362,081 1,375,702 1,389,459 1,403,353 1,417,387

Total General Fund Revenue 5,986,283 5,643,710 5,776,446 5,919,658 6,066,891 6,218,263
RDA Nonprop tax Pass Thru 427,275 375,000 475,463 525,570 375,000 375,000
Hercules Development Fees - - 106,000 106,852 100,000 100,000
Measure "O" 2,519,748 2,584,204 2,661,730 2,741,582 2,823,829 2,908,544
Earning on Investment 12,296 12,296 12,911
Misc. Government Revenue 14,192 - - - - -
Other District Revenue 23,109 37,000 - 23,109 23,109 23,109
Fire prevention plan review 20,000 30,000 100,802 72,448 55,000 55,000
TOTAL Other Revenue | 3,004,324 | | 3026204 | 37343995| | 3481857 | | 3,389,234| | 3,474,564 |
TOTAL GRAND REVENUE 8,990,607 8,669,914 9,120,441 9,401,515 9,456,125 9,692,827
Expenditures -
Salaries and Benefits 6,793,067 7,157,199 7,658,203 8,194,277 8,767,877 9,381,628
Services and Supplies Expenditures 1,523,739 1,456,067 1,499,749 1,544,741 1,591,084 1,638,816
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 8,316,806 8,613,266 9,157,952 9,739,018 10,358,961 11,020,444
Change in Revenue and Expenditures 673,801 56,648 (37,511) (337,503) (902,835) (1,327,617)

Assumptions:

Property Tax increase 3%

Special Tax/Benefit Assessment 1%
Measure "O" increase 1.01%
Salary and Benefit increase 7%
Services and Supplies Increase 3%

"Note: This balanced budget does not include several significant staffing costs for programs necessary to
maintain a sustainable fire district. These programs are currently being considered as part of the 2022 Strategic
Planning process for possible funding in future budget years. This budget assumes a full time Fire Chief on staff
in late fall. Currently, the Battalion Chief is serving as Interim Fire Chief.

21| Page



RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Directors, RODEO HERCULES FIRE DISTRICT
FROM: Darren Johnson, INTERIM FIRE CHIEF
DATE: June 8, 2022
RE: EVEN - YEAR BOARD OF DIRECTOR ELECTIONS
BACKGROUND:

The District's Board of Director election is scheduled for November 8, 2022. In advance of the election, the
District must submit a "Notice to the County Elections Official™ worksheet informing Contra Costa County
Elections Division (County Elections) of the Board's determination of

(1) the positions up for election in November and their terms;

(2) whether the District or each candidates will pay for the publication of his or her statement of
qualifications; (3) establishing the method the District will use in case of a tie, and

(4) setting additional specifications for the conduct of the election.

The Board must adopt a resolution providing answers to each of the questions included on the worksheet
before the deadline for the District to submit its completed notice (July 6, 2022).

RECITALS:

Candidate Statement of Qualifications: Each candidate may prepare a statement of qualifications on
an appropriate form provided by County Elections. Staff seeks formal direction from the Board regarding the
length of the statement of qualifications, approval of an estimate for the publication costs, and whether
candidates must deposit the costs at the time of filing their statements.

Each candidate may submit a statement of qualifications for publication in the Voter Information Guide
that may include the candidate's name, age, and occupation, and a brief description of the candidate’s
education and qualifications. It may not include the party affiliation of the candidate, or membership or
activity in partisan political organizations. The Elections Code sets the default word limit for the statement of
qualifications as 200 words total, though the Board may increase the limit by up to 200 words (i.e. up to 400
words in total).

Fiscal Impacts: The Elections Code requires the District to pay the County for the cost of publishing
the statement of qualifications, but allows the District to collect the funds from candidates. The Board may
require candidates to make a deposit equal to the publication costs when filing a statement of qualifications.
Consistent with the Board's action in 2020, the attached resolution specifies that the candidates will pay the
cost of publishing their statements of qualifications. Staff further recommends that the District require that
candidates deposit funds for publishing costs when filing their statements of qualifications to ensure payment.

Procedures for Tie Votes: The Board must determine the process for selecting a winner in the unlikely
event of a tie vote for the second Board seat. The options for choosing a winner for the second Board seat are
1) determination by lot; and 2) a run-off election on the sixth Tuesday following the election at which the tie
vote occurred

There are substantive pros and cons associated with each alternative. Determination by lot is
administratively easily, has no associated budget impact or cost, and can be accomplished at a time and
location determined by the Board of Directors. However, it could be argued that this approach may not fully



reflect the will of the District's voters.

Due to the administrative and cost benefits, Staff recommends the Board inform County Elections that
the Board will draw lots to determine the winner in the unlikely event of a tie for the second highest vote-
getter.

Director Seats Up for Election: Consistent with the above, the attached resolution specifies that there
will be three Directors up for election in November, each for four-year terms.

Board Procedures: The Board directs staff to submit the required Notice to the County Elections
Official, County Elections will make declaration of candidacy forms available to potential candidates in July.
Candidates must return their declarations to County Elections by August.

RECOMMENDATION FOR ACTION:

Adopt a resolution: Ordering a General District Election on November 8, 2022 for three Director Positions;
and Setting Specifications for the Election.

Attachment: Resolution 2022-05 Even-Year Board of Directors Election



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Resolution Ordering Even-Year Board of ) RESOLUTION NO. 2022-05
Directors Election; Consolidation of Elections; )
and Specifications of the Election Order )

WHEREAS, California Elections Code requires a general district election be held in each
district to choose a successor for each elective officer whose term will expire on the first Friday in
December following the election to be held on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in
November in each even-numbered year and

WHEREAS, other elections may be held in whole or in part of the territory of the district
and it is to the advantage of the district to consolidate pursuant to Elections Code §10400; and

WHEREAS, Elections Code §10520 requires each district involved in a general election
to reimburse the county for the actual costs incurred by the county elections official in conducting
the election for that district; and

WHEREAS, Elections Code §13307 requires that before the nominating period opens the
district board must determine whether a charge shall be levied against each candidate submitting
a candidate’s statement to be sent to the voters; may establish the cost; and determine whether the
costs be paid in advance; and

WHEREAS, Elections Code §12112 requires the election official of the principal county
to publish a notice of the election once in a newspaper of general circulation in the District;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that an election be held within the territory
included in this district on the 8" day of November, 2022, for the purpose of electing members to
the board of directors of said district in accordance with the following specifications:

SPECIFICATIONS OF THE ELECTION ORDER

1. The Election shall be held on Tuesday, the 8" day of November 2022. The purpose of the
election is to choose members of the board of directors for the following seats:

Board of Director: 4 year term
Board of Director: 4 year term
Board of Director: 4 year term

2. The District has determined that the Candidate will pay for the Candidate’s Statement. As
a condition of having the Candidate’s Statement published, the candidate shall pay the costs



at the time of filing. The District hereby establishes the cost for a candidate statement as
the following: $377.00.

The District directs that the County Registrar of Voters of the principal county publish the
Notice of Election in a newspaper of general circulation that is regularly circulated in the
territory.

4. This Board hereby requests and consents to the consolidation of this election with other
elections which may be held in whole or in part of the territory of the district, pursuant to
Elections Code §10400.

The district will reimburse the county for the actual cost incurred by the county elections
official in conducting the general district election upon receipt of a bill stating the amount
due as determined by the elections official.

6. The Clerk of this Board is ordered to deliver copies of this Resolution, to the Registrar of
Voters, and if applicable, to the Registrar of Voters of any other county in which the
election is to be held, and to the Board of Supervisors.

7. THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS ADOPTED wupon motion of
Director , Seconded by Director , at a
regular meeting on this 8" day of June, 2022, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

DATED BOARD CLERK
Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection District



Rodeo Hercules Fire
Protection District

MEMORANDUM
To: BOARD of DIRECTORS, Rodeo Hercules Fire District
From: Darren Johnson, Acting Fire Chief Dﬂ
Subject: FIRE CHIEF'S REPORT

Date: June §, 2022

CCCERA: Contra Costa County Employees Retirement Association- Additional information
regarding Alameda County Deputy Sheriff’s Assoc. et al., v. Alameda County Employees' Retirement Assn.,
et al., and referred to as the Alameda decision was on the agenda for discussion at the September 8
CCCERA Board meeting. The determinations made during that meeting are as follows: The Board of
Retirement considered the issues of member contributions and retirement benefit adjustments in
connection with elements of pay no longer pensionable under AB 197 and the Alameda decision. The
Board adopted Resolution 2021-5 that authorizes the following actions in compliance with the Alameda
decision and applicable state and federal law:

1) Determine all member contributions attributable to excluded Terminal Pay Items and On-Call Pay Items made
on and after July 12, 2014, and credit or refund all such contributions, with appropriate interest, to the affected
members, in a manner that complies with applicable federal tax rules and California law.

2) Determine all overpayments of benefits made to retired members due to excluded Estoppel Benefits and On-
Call Pay Items since July 12, 2014, and recover those overpayments from the affected members, with appropriate
interest, net of any contributions made on and after July 12, 2014, attributable to such excluded items, in a
manner that complies with applicable federal tax rules and California law.

3) Determine appropriate adjustments to the future retirement benefits paid to affected members in Item 2
above and implement those adjustments at the earliest practicable time.

The above actions will commence upon the final resolution of the three AB 197 lawsuits involving
CCCERA. NO Updates. Reporting: Acting Chief Johnson

Labor Relations — Personnel — Current MOU expires June 30, Contract negotiations have
begun

1 employee off for covid 19 currently; 1 employee on worker’s compensation leave

Reporting: Acting Chief Johnson

Fire Stations/Training Facility
Multi-company training has resumed with all Battalion 7 Units. Probationary employees are continuing

their training and Task Book signoffs. Conducted Captains test for 1 open position and will be
conducting Engineers test in August.
Reporting: Acting Chief Johnson

Facilities- Nothing to report.
Reporting: Acting Chief Johnson

Grants/Reimbursements — The Fire District and other agencies have received reimbursements for
personnel costs associated with the vaccination clinic hosted by the district.
Reporting: Acting Chief Johnson



Incident Activity- No structure fires. Crews responded to several vegetation fire throughout Rodeo-Hercules
and Pinole
Reporting: Acting Chief Johnson

Community Risk Reduction — Company conducted business inspections are currently on hold, with a plan to
resume engine company business inspections in July/August. The district’s website is continually updated
with relevant community information as well as information about the Fire District. The Fire District
encourages community members to visit rhfd.org for updates.

Reporting: Acting Chief Johnson

Community /Wildfire Prevention — Weed abatement has begun and is ongoing. All weeds should be cut by July
1. All fire trails have been completed in Rodeo and Hercules. Fire season is ahead of schedule.
Reporting: Acting Chief Johnson

Fleet Management —All apparatus has been serviced and back in stations.
Reporting: Acting Chief Johnson

Fiscal Stabilization — Staff continues to monitor the current Fiscal Year budget. Currently finishing up the
preliminary budget for 2022-2023. Held our initial community strategic report planning meeting with the citizens.
Staff has spent 2 days with Fitch and Associates (Strategic Planning Group)

Reporting: Acting Chief Johnson

Community Activities —Attended Rodeo Municipal Advisory Panel, Hercules Rotary, and Hercules Planning
commission meeting, 4th of July preparation meeting and the Walk of Honor in Crockett honoring the veterans
Reporting: Acting Chief Johnson

Commendations/Awards/Notables — Badge pinning presentation is scheduled for July 18 for the two new
firefighter recruits.

Reporting: Acting Chief Johnson

New Development — Fire District staff continue to meet and provide guidance to developers on various projects
throughout the Fire District. Written conditions of approval for upcoming projects were issued to; Phillips 66
Solar Project, Sycamore Crossing, and Franklin Canyon RV Park. The Fire District provided comment to the EIR
for Phillip 66 Renewable Energy Project. Additional businesses coming are, an additional senior housing complex
on Willow Ave next to the current complex in Hercules, multi-family housing live-work in Rodeo at 4™ and
Parker, 3 additional homes will be built on Parker Ave next to the post office in Rodeo.

Reporting: Acting Chief Johnson



Incident Type Count Report

Date Range: From 5/1/2022 To 5/31/2022
Selected Station(s): All

Incident
Tvype Description Count
Station:
Incident Type is blanks 67 23.10%
Total - incident type left blank 67 100.00%
Total for Station 67 23.10%
Station: 75
111 - Building fire 1 0.34%
118 - Trash or rubbish fire, contained 1 0.34%
140 - Natural vegetation fire, other 2 0.69%
142 - Brush, or brush and grass mixture fire 3 1.03%
151 - Outside rubbish, trash or waste fire 2 0.69%
162 - Outside equipment fire 1 0.34%
Total - Fires 10 9.01%
311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew 1 0.34%
321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury 55 18.97%
322 - Vehicle accident with injuries 7 2.41%
Total - Rescue & Emergency Medical Service Incidents 63 56.76%
410 - Flammable gas or liquid condition, other 1 0.34%
412 - Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 1 0.34%
Total - Hazardous Conditions (No fire) 2 1.80%
550 - Public service assistance, other 2 0.69%
554 - Assist invalid 5 1.72%
Total - Service Call 7 6.31%
611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 25 8.62%
611E - EMS: Dispatched & cancelled en route 1 0.34%
Total - Good Intent Call 26 23.42%
700 - False alarm or false call, other 3 1.03%
Total - Fals Alarm & False Call 3 2.70%
Total for Station 111 38.28%
Station: 76
100 - Fire, other 1 0.34%
113 - Cooking fire, confined to container 1 0.34%
118 - Trash or rubbish fire, contained 2 0.69%
143 - Grass fire 1 0.34%
Total - Fires 5 4.46%
321 - EMS call, excluding vehicle accident with injury 47 16.21%
322 - Vehicle accident with injuries 4 1.38%
324 - Motor vehicle accident with no injuries 1 0.34%
Total - Rescue & Emergency Medical Service Incidents 52 46.43%
400 - Hazardous condition, other 2 0.69%
412 - Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 2 0.69%

Page 1 of 2 Printed 06/03/2022 14:29:37



Incident
Type Description

Station; 76 - (Continued)
480 - Attempted burning, illegal action, other
Total - Hazardous Conditions (No fire)

510 - Person in distress, other
511 - Lock-out
520 - Water problem, other
522 - Water or steam leak
5410 - Snake problem
550 - Public service assistance, other
553 - Public service
554 - Assist invalid
Total - Service Call

611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route
611E - EMS: Dispatched & cancelled en route
651 - Smoke scare, odor of smoke

Total - Good Intent Call

700 - False alarm or false call, other
730 - System malfunction, other
Total - Fals Alarm & False Call

Total for Station

Count

1 0.34%

5 4.46%

1 0.34%

1 0.34%

1 0.34%

2 0.69%

1 0.34%

4 1.38%

1 0.34%

4 1.38%
15 13.39%
17 5.86%
3 1.03%

4 1.38%
24 21.43%
10 3.45%
1 0.34%
11 9.82%
112 38.62%
290 100.00%

Page 2 of 2

Printed 06/03/2022 14:29:50



RODEO-HERCULES FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM
TO: Board of Directors, RODEO HERCULES FIRE DISTRICT
FROM: Kim Corcoran, ASO
DATE: June 8, 2022
RE: Staff Report Website Update

May 20™"-Kick off phone call with Streamline to discuss steps before website is live

May 24-current: Tammy and Kim completed the training and began to navigate and update the new
website

June 3: Streamline coordinating with Webquarry to obtain credentials for rhfd.org
June 23: Phone call before website goes live

July 1: Website is live.

Screenshots of home page layout and internal features for compliance:

PODEO-HERC;, S

S5 S

0
MEETINGS
MEASURE O
2022 STRATEGIC PLAN

NEWS

=3 b — SERVICES

Our Mission
» BOARD MEMBERS

It is the mission of this organization to provide the highest level of
service to the community; to mitigate the devastating effects of fires.. B STAFF

: &
Services
The Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection District is located !

res of San Pablo Bay, 30 minutes north of San ¥

he District provides fire protection, and

emergency medical aid to the



Compliance

[E) Transparency @ Accessibility

*
Items required by the State of California are indicated by an icon SR

Allother items are part of the Special District Leadership Foundation's Transparency Certificate of Excellence program and are optional. The California Special District Association's nonprofit leadership group. the Special District Leadership Foundation. created voluntary
guidelines to help Califormia special districts follow transparency best practices. Districts that undertake these guidelines can apply for SDLF Transps Certification More i 1 be found on the SDLF website

[0 Show only State of California requirements

» General Agency Information 2902020

> Board of Directors 220920

> Financial Reports and Policies 00020000
> Other Policies 0000

Not required 1o be posted anline, but since you have to have them, why not?

> Best Practices 00%00900

Al least two of these items should be complete. You're welcome to complete more!

100

Accessibility

These checks highlight opportunities to improve the accessibility of your

web app. Only a subset of accessibility issues can be automatically
detected so manual testing is also encouraged.

ADDITIONAL ITEMS TO MANUALLY CHECK (10) Show

These items address areas which an automated testing tool cannot cover. Learn more in our guide on conducting_an
accessibility review.

PASSED AUDITS (23) Show

NOT APPLICABLE (21) Show



	02. 05 11 2022 mtg minutes
	03. Transmittals
	Sheet2

	04. 22-23 Budget Staff Report
	06. Elections Staff Report
	07. 2022_05 Resolution Calling Election 2022-05
	09. Incident Report
	10. website update
	05. 22-23 Budget Preliminary.pdf
	I. MIssion Statement
	II. Executive Summary
	A. Transmittal Letter
	B. District Overview

	III. FIRE OPERATIONS
	A. Budget Overview and Summary
	B. Fire District Financial Position

	IV. Statement of Unfunded Liabilities: CCCERA & OPEB UAALS
	V. BUDGET POLICIES
	A. Policy for Reserves and Fund Balances and Goals for Reserves and Fund Balance Maintenance

	VI. FIRE DISTRICT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES & FUND BALANCES
	A. Fire District Revenues
	B. Fire District Expenditures
	C. Fire District Fund Balances

	VII. GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES
	VIII. DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES:
	IX.   FIVE YEAR REVENUE & EXPENDITURE PROJECTIONS




